Minutes of the Neighbourhood Services Committee 24 June 2021

Present:

Councillor A. Brar (Chairman) Councillor V. Siva (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors:

R.D. Dunn V.J. Leighton S.C. Mooney S.A. Dunn A.J. Mitchell B.B. Spoor

Apologies: Councillors J. McIlroy

In Attendance: Councillors C. Bateson

175/21 Disclosures of Interest

There were none.

176/21 Introduction to Neighbourhood Services Committee

The Group Head of Neighbourhood Services provided a verbal outline of what falls within the remit of the Neighbourhood Services Committee and circulated a written summary for the Committee to take away.

The Committee **resolved** to note the verbal outline from the Group Head of Neighbourhood Services on the workings of Neighbourhood Services and the written summary provided which would be published with the minutes.

177/21 Neighbourhood Services Committee - Terms of Reference

The Committee **resolved** to note its Terms of Reference.

178/21 Food and Health and Safety Service Plans for 2021/22

The Committee considered a report on the proposed Food and Health and Safety Service Plans for 2021/22.

The Committee noted the Council's process for dealing with premises who received low hygiene ratings, and that Environmental Health team resources

had been stretched due to the pandemic and a national shortage of officers, causing a backlog of inspections of food establishments.

The Committee acknowledged that more could be done to inform the public of the hygiene ratings achieved by food establishments. Councillor Leighton proposed that the Senior Environmental Health Manager write a letter to the Food Standards Agency requesting that they support the display of food hygiene ratings becomes mandatory and that this letter was to be sent within one month of the date of the Committee meeting. This was seconded by Councillors S. Dunn and T. Mitchell simultaneously and agreed unanimously by the Committee. The Senior Environmental Health Officer also suggested she could raise the topic at a meeting with other Environmental Health Managers in Surrey to inquire if they would like to add their support.

Alternative options considered and rejected by the Committee:

- 1. To amend the proposed service plans.
- 2. To not adopt the proposed service plans.

The Committee **resolved** to:

- 1. adopt the proposed Food Service Plan 2021/22
- 2. adopt the proposed Health and Safety Service Plan 2021/22
- 3. agree that the Senior Environmental Health Manager write a letter to the Food Standards Agency requesting that they support that the display of food hygiene ratings becomes mandatory and that this letter be sent within one month of the date of the Committee meeting.

179/21 Forward Plan

The Committee considered the forward plan for future committee business.

The Committee noted that the forward plan is a living document that is continually updated.

The Group Head of Neighbourhood Services explained that the Community Safety update scheduled for 9 September 2021 would be quite a lengthy item and requested that the Parking Services Update scheduled for that same meeting be moved to 4 November 2021. She also advised the Committee that since the publication of the forward plan the Adoption of fixed penalty notices for household waste had been scheduled for consideration on 9 September 2021.

After some discussion about litter signage, the Committee confirmed they were happy with the new signage presented by the Group Head of Neighbourhood Services and instructed her to replace the dog fouling signs with the new signage as soon as possible. The Committee also requested the Group Head of Neighbourhood Services engage with local schools through the Junior Citizen's Event to produce litter signage for their respective schools and requested that an update on the effectiveness of the new Litter Poster

Campaign be given at a future meeting. The Group Head of Neighbourhood Services confirmed that she would be able to provide feedback on 4 November 2021.

The Committee **resolved** to note the forward plan, subject to the following amendments:

- 1. The Parking Services Update will move to 4 November 2021;
- 2. The Review of rules and regulations: cemetery and burial grounds will be amended to reflect it is a Key Decision;
- 3. The Litter Poster Campaign Update will be scheduled for 4 November 2021;
- 4. Adoption of fixed penalty notices for household waste to be scheduled for 9 September 2021;
- 5. Committee Services to circulate an updated version of the Forward Plan with the minutes.





Neighbourhood Services committee

Membership

Chair Cllr Amar Brar

Vice Chair Cllr Veena Siva

Cllr Sinead Mooney

Cllr Vivienne Leighton

Cllr Jim McIlroy

Cllr Tony Mitchell

Cllr Bernie Spoor

Cllr Richard Dunn

Cllr Sandra Dunn

Officer Jackie Taylor Group Head of Neighbourhood Services

Committee Officer Christeen Abee

Functions

1.	Street cleansing	Focus on making sure that the borough remains clean & attractive		
	services	for both visitors & residents		
		Provision and emptying of litter bins		
		Litter clearance		
		Removal of fly tipping		
		Mechanical sweeping of road channels & footways		
		Graffiti removal		
		Dog fouling in public places		
		Removal of dead animals		
		Removal of drug related paraphernalia		
		Leaf clearance		
2.	Streetscene	Focus on what makes the borough remain clean & attractive for		
		both visitors & residents		
		Street cleansing services		
		Floral decorations, Spelthorne in Bloom (SIB)		
		Street furniture		
		Posters, signage & banners		
3.	Parking Services	Management of both on & off-street parking including		
		enforcement of On Street parking restrictions		
		39 Spelthorne borough regulated car parks		
		34 pay & display machines & 6 pay on foot		
		Enforcement of on street parking restrictions undertaken on behalf		
		of SCC under an agency agreement		
		Manage the issue of parking permits & season tickets and parking		

Version V2 25 June 2021



Neighbourhood Service	ces committee	BOROUGH COUNCIL
	suspensions	
	Maintenance of pay & display payment	machines, web hosting & pay & card
		C car parks are set under the parking
		(CEOs) work out of the parking office
4. Customer services		services officer is the first point of
& Consultation		ublic asking for information about
	benefit, leisure facilities, envir applications or electoral regist	ration. In some cases, the customer ustomer service assistants can be
	deliver our services for custon we provide our services, and f about our strategic plans. We with customers, including: -	ns are aimed at improving the way we ners, agreeing standards for the way inding out what customers think use a variety of methods to consult (currently limited due to Covid
F. Building Control	• email, web and social	media surveys
5. Building Control	minimum standards for design	nment - The Building Regulations are n, construction and alterations for legulations are developed by the UK Parliament.
	meets the minimum technical safety, energy performance and disabilities. The Building Reconstruction and extension of supported by Approved Docout detailed practical guidance.	buildings and these Regulations are uments. Approved Documents set e on compliance with the Regulations. is different from planning permission
		building work can choose to use either Control (LABC) team or a private confirm compliance with the



Neighbourhood Services committee

Neighbourhood Services committee BOROUGH COUN				
	Spo	elthorne's BC Team also deal with:		
	pro wh	ngerous structures – ensuring these are made safe. This includes oviding advice in support of emergency services in situations here fires and other accidents have potentially affected the uctural integrity of a building.		
	de	reet naming and numbering – ensuring that new velopments are appropriately named and numbered and do not use confusion for postal and emergency services.		
6. Cemeter		e Council owns and manages two cemeteries and two burial bunds: -		
		nines Cemetery, Sunbury Cemetery, Ashford burial ground & nwell burial ground.		
	yea ow	of the Cemetery and Burial Grounds are opened every day of the ar. The Cemetery Office deals with bookings of burials, transfer of mership, memorial permits, upkeep of burial records and quiries from members of the public.		
	the	cemeteries have a traditional or lawn section for a full burial or e Garden of Remembrance for cremated remains. Sunbury metery also offers a 24-hour burial section.		
	So	e cemeteries are regular achievers in both Green Flag and the uth & South East in Bloom awards, regularly winning Silver Gilt d Gold awards. Staines Cemetery also has a Green Flag.		
7. Commur crime &	disorder pa	ntutory requirement for local authorities & others to work in rtnership to reduce crime & Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) rtners include: -		
	Sur Sur Tao	rrey Fire & Rescue, Clinical Commissioning Group, probation, rrey County Council & Surrey Police ckles persistent crime & disorder issues adversely affecting the		
		ality of life of local people.		
		me & disorder falls within the remit of the police		
	cor ass an	elthorne Safer Stronger Partnership (SSSP) is responsible for nvening a strategy group of all responsible authorities, prepare an sessment of local crime & community safety priorities and agree action plan to meet priorities.		
	co- Eve	mmunity Safety (CS) Team at Spelthorne takes responsibility for ordinating activities and events and driving performance. ents include Junior Citizen & Police Action Days (PAD).		
	The	TV across the borough: e CS team also manage all aspects of the provision of CCTV luding the CCTV monitoring contract & water safety.		
8. Civil enfo		e Joint Enforcement Team is a collaboration between Surrey		
		lice and Spelthorne to help agencies work more efficiently		
Joint Lin	o. scincile FO	nee and operationic to help agencies work more empletitly		



Neighbourhood Service	es committee	BOROUGH COUNCIL
Team (JET)	together. The Enforcement team provide a question response to anti-social behaviour of and tackle a range of problems including, fly posting and graffiti, fly the Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) and unti-Social Behaviour (ASB)	on behalf of Spelthorne Council luding abandoned vehicles, dog tipping, litter, fly posting, beggars, lawful encampments. Inited powers devolved to them er (PCC). The protection orders (PSPOs) such inisters not for their intended use
9. Environmental protection	Sites of Special Scientific Interes water protected by law to conser	
	Staines Moor (SSSI) Designated a S floral species, wintering wildfowl a through the site which is great for	nd waders. The River Colne flows
	Shortwood Common (SSSI) A grass species of plants such and incorpor the SSSI remit and holds a national haven for fish, birds and amphibiar	rates a pond which falls within ly rare plant along with being a
	Dumsey Meadow (SSSI) is an area on the floodplain of the River Than uncommon in the south-east of Enonly remaining grazed unimproved The grass is cut for hay in August a	nes; such habitats are now very gland. Dumsey Meadow is the I Thames-side meadow in Surrey.
	Sunbury Park (Ecological) This Park offers traditional methods of mana setting. The site is seasonally graze species such as wildflowers to esta	agement resulting in a naturalised ed allowing desirable floral
	Studios Walk (Ecological) The site incorporates mature Oak trees whi varying bat species. A joint river enchannel re-opened as a fish bypass ecological benefits to the site.	ich hold significant value for hancement project saw the
	Included in this section is also Poll (undertaken by Environmental He investigation and regulation of a rapollution complaints; and contaminimproving, and reporting on air quant	alth - EH) ange of polluting processes; nated land. The monitoring,
10. Food safety & enforcement	The work of Environmental Health enforcing the regulation of over 17 Food safety (undertaken by EH) – i	(EH) is in the main statutory 'O separate pieces of legislation.



Neighbourhood Services committee

Neighbourhood Service	ces committee Borooga Cooncil
	premises including the provision of advice, training, and support to businesses; investigation of food complaints; microbiological food sampling.
11. Health & Safety enforcement	Health and safety at work (undertaken by EH) – inspection and regulation of premises in relation to health and safety (H&S) at work premises including the provision of advice, training, and support to businesses; accident investigation. Environmental Health provide a 24/7 response to emergency situations including accidents/fatalities under the H&S at Work Act, polluting events, and infection disease control
12. Consumer	Consumer protection falls to Surrey County Council's trading
protection,	standards team.
licensing, trading	Noise control/monitoring (undertaken by EH) – investigation and
standards &	regulation of noise complaints; monitoring noise from commercial
environmental	activities; monitoring noise at work.
health	Public health (undertaken by EH) – investigation and
	regulation of a range of nuisances and public health issues, including drainage, accumulations, odour, smoke, light pollution; pest control/stray dogs; filthy/verminous premises: welfare burials
	Licensing and planning application referrals (undertaken by EH) – commenting and advising on the environmental health aspects of licensing applications (some of this is as a statutory consultee) and some of this is for land redevelopment planning applications (non-statutory work).
13. Planning enforcement	Planning Enforcement is part of the Development Management Service, and the role of the Planning Enforcement Officers is to ensure that development is being built in accordance with approved planning application plans, and that the conditions attached to planning permissions are complied with. Enforcement Action is discretionary, but the duty to investigate an alleged breach pf planning control is not. The Council's Local Enforcement Plan provides guidance on managing Enforcement proactively and appropriately, with the intention being that, as far as is possible and reasonable, enforcement action is remedial rather than punishable. The planning enforcement officers carry a high number of varied cases including, but not limited to - incorrectly sited outbuildings, buildings not being constructed in accordance with the approved plans, use of inappropriate/unapproved, materials, deteriorating
	Listed Buildings, Tree Preservation Orders, Listed buildings, and the associated court cases and appeals that may arise from any of the above.





Spelthorne Borough Council Services Committees Forward Plan and Key Decisions

This Forward Plan sets out the decisions which the Service Committees expect to take over the forthcoming months, and identifies those which are **Key Decisions**.

A **Key Decision** is a decision to be taken by the Service Committee, which is either likely to result in significant expenditure or savings or to have significant effects on those living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in the Borough.

Please direct any enquiries about this Plan to the Principal Committee Manager, Michelle Beaumont, at the Council offices on 01784 446337 or e-mail m.beaumont@spelthorne.gov.uk

Spelthorne Borough Council

Service Committees Forward Plan and Key Decisions for 25 June 2021 to 26 May 2022

Anticipated earliest (or next) date of decision and decision maker	Matter for consideration	Key or non-Key Decision	Decision to be taken in Public or Private	Lead Officer
Neighbourhood Services Committee 09 09 2021	Community Safety update To provide an update to the Committee on Community Safety	Non-Key Decision	Public	Jackie Taylor, Group Head - Neighbourhood Services
Neighbourhood Services Committee 09 09 2021	Adoption of fixed penalty notices for household waste The committee is asked to consider a proposal to introduce a new fixed penalty notice	Key Decision It is significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards	Public	Jackie Taylor, Group Head - Neighbourhood Services
Neighbourhood Services Committee 09 09 2021	Review of rules and regulations: cemetery and burial grounds Review of rules and regulations in respect of cemetery and burial grounds.	Key Decision It is significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards	Public	Jackie Taylor, Group Head - Neighbourhood Services
Neighbourhood Services Committee 09 09 2021	Revenue & Capital monitoring (Qtr. 1 April-June) To note the current level of revenue and capital spend.	Non-Key Decision	Public	Terry Collier, Deputy Chief Executive, Paul Taylor, Chief Accountant
Neighbourhood Services Committee 04 11 2021	Parking Services Update To provide an update on parking services within the borough.	Non-Key Decision	Public	Bruno Barbosa, Parking Services Manager, Jackie Taylor, Group Head - Neighbourhood Services

Date of decision and decision maker	Matter for consideration	Key or non-Key Decision	Decision to be taken in Public or Private	Lead Officer
Neighbourhood Services Committee 04 11 2021	Cemetery Capacity To provide an update on cemetery capacity to the Committee	Non-Key Decision	Public	Jackie Taylor, Group Head - Neighbourhood Services
Neighbourhood Services Committee 04 11 2021	Litter Poster Campaign - UPDATE To receive an update on the litter poster campaign.	Non-Key Decision	Public	Jackie Taylor, Group Head - Neighbourhood Services

This page is intentionally left blank